
 Regular Meeting AGENDA, October 16, 2024 | Page 1 of 2 
 

NEWTON FALLS CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Wednesday, October 16, 2024; 6:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
612 WEST BROAD STREET 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS  CITY ADMINISTRATION 
     
Ward 1 Patricia Benetis  Interim City Manager Mike Novotny 
Ward 2 Brian Axiotis  Law Director Jeff Limbian 
Ward 3 Brenda Persino  Finance Director Jamie Vernaccini 
Ward 4 Kevin Rufener  Clerk of Council Michael Acomb 
At- Large Julie Stimpert    
Mayor David Hanson    

 
I. Call to Order 

II. Pledge of Allegiance / Silent Prayer 
III. Roll Call 
IV. Changes To Tonight’s Agenda 
V. Special Presentations by Staff Members or Invited Consultants 

VI. Public Comments (Agenda Items Only) 
VII. Reports 

a. Mayor  
b. Council Members 
c. Law Director 
d. Finance Director 
e. City Manager 

VIII. Approval of Previous Minutes 
Regular Meeting Minutes October 2, 2024 

IX. Public Hearings 
X. Unfinished Business 

XI. New Business 
RESOLUTION 07-2024  Sponsors: Councilpersons, Stimpert, Persino 
A RESOLUTION RESCINDING RESOLUTION 38-2023 AND DISSOLVING THE 
COMMUNITY SERVICES AND ACTIVITIES COMMITTEE PREVIOUSLY 
ESTABLISHED TO SOLICIT, EVALUATE, AND RECOMMEND OPTIONS RELATED 
TO COMMUNITY AND SENIOR SERVICES AND ACTIVITIES PROVIDED BY THE 
VILLAGE 
 
ORDINANCE 2024-44  Sponsors: Councilpersons Axiotis, Rufener 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF THE 2023 NPP POWER POOL 
PARTICIPANT SCHEDULE WITH AMERICAN MUNICIPAL POWER, INC. (“AMP”) 
 

 

 



 Regular Meeting AGENDA, October 16, 2024 | Page 2 of 2 
 

Public Comments 
XII. Closing Remarks 

a. Mayor  
b. Council Members 
c. Finance Director 
d. Law Director 
e. City Manager 

XIII. Motion to Recess into Executive Session (If Necessary) 
XIV. Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 



 

 Regular Meeting MINUTES, October 2, 2024 | Page 1 of 4 
 

NEWTON FALLS CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, October 2, 2024; 6:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
612 WEST BROAD STREET 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS  CITY ADMINISTRATION 
     
Ward 1 Patricia Benetis  Interim City Manager Mike Novotny 
Ward 2 Brian Axiotis  Law Director Jeff Limbian 
Ward 3 Brenda Persino  Finance Director Jamie Vernaccini 
Ward 4 Kevin Rufener  Clerk of Council Michael Acomb 
At- Large Julie Stimpert    
Mayor David Hanson    

 
I. Call to Order 

Mayor Hanson called the meeting to order at 6:01 pm. 
II. Pledge of Allegiance / Silent Prayer 

III. Roll Call 
Mayor Hanson asked Mr. Acomb to call the roll. 
Council Present: Councilperson Axiotis, Councilperson Benetis, Councilperson Persino, 
Councilperson Rufener, Councilperson Stimpert, Mayor Hanson. 
Council Absent: None 
Staff Present: Interim City Manager Novotny. Clerk Acomb, Law Director Limbian, 
Finance Director Vernaccini. 
Staff Absent: None. 

IV. Changes To Tonight’s Agenda 
Mr. Axiotis made a motion to add a Motion to appoint Brian Kropp to the Planning and 
Zoning Commission for the unexpired term beginning October 2, 2024 and ending 
December 31, 2024.  He stated that Council typically interviews for these positions. Mr. 
Kropp was interviewed for the TIB. He is the only applicant for this position. Seconded 
by: Ms. Stimpert. 
 No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. The Motion was added to New Business. 

Ms. Stimpert made a motion to removed the Motion to schedule the Kiwanis Cake Walk. 
She stated that this event is not the responsibility of the Village and oversteps the 
Kiwanis. Seconded by Ms. Persino. 

Mr. Rufener asked if either motion is required and if they are only on the agenda 
for PR reasons. Mr. Limbian said they are likely a PR item and that almost every 
local government does it to set the date and time of Trick or Treat in stone. It is 
not a governmental requirement, but more of a tradition. There is no legal 
requirement, but it gives people a heightened sense of the event. Mr. Rufener 
stated the event has been advertised for 2 months already. He advocated for 
minimal action and not do these types of motions if not necessary. Ms. Stimpert 
says trick or treat has always been done this way. She was approached by Kiwanis 



 

 Regular Meeting MINUTES, October 2, 2024 | Page 2 of 4 
 

to discuss this motion as it oversteps them. She supports the PR purpose and 
agreed with a need for heightened awareness. Mr. Rufener made a motion to 
amend Ms. Stimpert’s primary motion to add the motion related to Trick or Treat 
to also be removed. Seconded by Mr. Axiotis. Mr. Rufener reiterated that if 
legislation is not required then he advocates for not taking unnecessary action. 
The information is already out there and there is no reason to confirm it. 

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. Both Motions were removed from New Business. 
 
Ms. Persino made a motion to authorize the City Manager to spend up to $300 for 
primer, paint, and other materials for the skate park renovation project designed by 
student volunteers from the high school. Seconded by Mr. Rufener. Mr. Axiotis stated 
belief that any money spent by the Village should be done by ordinance. Ms. Stimpert 
agreed and stated belief that the City Manager has a spending threshold under which he 
may spend as he sees fit. She suggested that legislation is not necessary for this purpose. 
Ms. Persino removed the motion from consideration.  

V. Special Presentations by Staff Members or Invited Consultants 
None. 

VI. Public Comments (Agenda Items Only) 
None 

VII. Reports 
a. Mayor – He spoke to State Representative Santucci’s office and the convenience 

store owner wants to reintroduce the liquor license. Support will be given to the 
store owner. 

b. Council Members 
i. Ward 1 – She read from a prepared statement (enclosed). Mr. Novotny 

stated that field work is scheduled, and all three property owners are 
interested. Once platted, the process will move forward by the end of the 
month.   

ii. Ward 2 – PZ Meeting. Citizens have concerns about their property being 
zoned from commercial to residential. Citizens claim they were never 
notified and want that action undone. Some properties are legitimately 
commercial in nature in that area. They asked PZ to make those changes. 
Mr. Axiotis would like changes in the procedures when zoning changes 
are made. 

iii. Ward 3 – At the Parks and Rec meeting, Mrs. Rankin and two senior 
students presented their designs for an 80’s theme in the skate park. It 
will be a black and orange color scheme. She was impressed with their 
pride and enthusiasm and leadership. Tomorrow is the Homecoming 
Parade, and she hopes see everyone there. A community bonfire and rally 
will be held also. The game is on October 4 vs. Crestview. 

iv. Ward 4 – No report. 
v. At-Large – No report. 

c. Law Director – The law director spoke on several topics. He stated that he 
recognizes a pattern by some residents to attempt to use the criminal courts as a 
weapon against others through the years. The prosecutor will not prosecute cases 
without police reports. The courts will not be used to settle petty disputes or as a 
weapon. He also stated the Sheriff’s Department is doing a great job; but has no 
time for these little cases or abuses of the legal system. He spoke in support of 



 

 Regular Meeting MINUTES, October 2, 2024 | Page 3 of 4 
 

Chief Fixler’s return and the possible future of a police department. He also 
stated that annexation with the Dunkin Donuts construction is problematic. The 
site is in Braceville and he has little information; but wishes for a collaborative 
process with Braceville and asked for the administration to send him as much 
information about the issue as they have. 

d. Finance Director – She read from a prepared statement (enclosed). 
e. City Manager – He read from a prepared statement (enclosed). We are 

advertising for a part-time custodian position for the Municipal Center.  
VIII. Approval of Previous Minutes 

Mayor Hanson called for a motion to approve the Regular Meeting Minutes September 
18, 2024. Moved by Mr. Benetis. Seconded by Ms. Stimpert 
 No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-abstain – He noted his absence at this meeting; Ms. Benetis-
yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 4-0. The 
minutes were approved. 
 
Ms. Stimpert made a motion to accept the abstention of Mr. Axiotis. Seconded by Ms. 
Persino. 
 No discussion.  
Roll Call Vote: Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. Stimpert-yes. The 
motion passed 4-0.  
 
Public Hearings 
ORDINANCE 2024-41                       Sponsors: Councilpersons Rufener, Stimpert 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO.: 2023-18 (ATTACHED HEREIN AND 
INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE AS EXHIBIT “A”), HEREBY REVISING SECTION 
141.07 OF THE ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, MAKING THE POSITION OF POLICE 
CHIEF A FULL-TIME POSITION (ATTACHED AS EXHIBIT “B”) RETROACTIVELY 
EFFECTIVE JULY 30, 2023. 
No public comments. 
 

IX. Unfinished Business 
ORDINANCE 2024-41                       Sponsors: Councilpersons Rufener, Stimpert 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO.: 2023-18 (ATTACHED HEREIN AND 
INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE AS EXHIBIT “A”), HEREBY REVISING SECTION 
141.07 OF THE ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, MAKING THE POSITION OF POLICE 
CHIEF A FULL-TIME POSITION (ATTACHED AS EXHIBIT “B”) RETROACTIVELY 
EFFECTIVE JULY 30, 2023. 

Mayor Hanson read the ordinance by title only and asked for a motion to adopt the 
ordinance. Moved by Mr. Axiotis. Seconded by Mr. Rufener. 
 No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. The ordinance was adopted. 
  

X. New Business 
MOTION    
A Motion to appoint Brian Kropp to the Planning and Zoning Commission for the 
unexpired term beginning October 2, 2024 and ending December 31, 2024.  

Mayor Hanson read the motion and asked for a motion to pass the motion. Moved by: 



 

 Regular Meeting MINUTES, October 2, 2024 | Page 4 of 4 
 

Mr. Axiotis.  Seconded by: Ms. Stimpert. 
 No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. 

XI. Public Comments 
None. 

XII. Closing Remarks 
a. Mayor - None 
b. Council Members 

i. Ward 2 – Mr. Axiotis expressed concerns about the security of the laptops 
purchased by the Finance Director and wishes to know what those 
measures are. Ms. Vernaccini indicated that one laptop has been leaving 
the property and she understands that password protection is used, and 
all files are on the cloud requiring sign-ons. Property ID has been placed 
on the machine. She is willing to explore additional measures. 

ii. Ward 1 – None. 
iii. At-Large – None. 
iv. Ward 3 – She spoke on several topics including Hurricane Helene and the 

devastation in six states. She relayed her observations and concern from 
the news. She urged anyone who can to donate money, blood, food, 
clothing, and daily living supplies. She has a list of places who need 
volunteers and can accept donations. She urged all to make sure they use 
the correct websites and not scam websites. 

v. Ward 4 – He reminded about Late Night in the Falls on Friday. Live 
Music will be heard.  He urged all to attend. October 11 is a filming in 
town for a feature to be aired on TV to promote Newton Falls. He 
recognized Tom Colosimo for renovating the alley and working to 
promote the Village in the media. He announced the Kiwanis Cake Walk 
and the Trick or Treat Event afterwards. 

c. Finance Director – None. 
d. Law Director – He echoed Mr. Rufener’s sentiment about the alleyway. He is 

amazed by it. 
e. City Manager – None. 

XIII. Motion to Recess into Executive Session (If Necessary) 
No Motion. 

XIV. Adjournment 
Mayor Hanson called for a motion to adjourn the meeting. Moved by Mr. Axiotis. 
Seconded by Ms. Benetis. 

No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. The meeting was adjourned at 6:47 pm.  

APPROVED: 
              

        ________________________________________ 
                                David Hanson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________________________________ 
Michael Acomb, Clerk of Council 



T o :

Finance Directors Report

Members of Council

David Hanson, Mayor
Mike Novotny, City Manager
Jeff Limbian, Law Director
Jamie Vernaccini, Director of Finance
October 2, 2024
Finance Department

A TROL

Beffer Tomorot

F r o m :

Date :

S u b j e c t :

Month end close:
Monthly Reports for SSI are posted onto the website. Month end close was
successful and completed in a timely fashion by the Finance Department. The
monthly bank reconciliation will be completed by the department and will be given
to the CPA for assurance that everything is reconciled.

City Budget:
City budgetary process is on-going for 2025. So far, I have updated information
received by the previous Finance Director which I integrated into the budget. I
have also met with departments that did not respond to the initial request or were
not available to respond (Streets and Police Department).
Budgets are moving on to integrating requests by department for larger capital
expenditures that may be needed.

Computer Updates:
The Finance Department ordered new laptops. These laptops will allow each
employee to work from a docking station while at the City in the regular offices
but will also allow for flexibility for the employees to be able to log in from
another location within the City or from home if there is a need to social distance.
During COVID there was a need for employees to work from home at times.

Income Tax:

RITA has prov ided not i f ica t ion that  a l l  non- f i le rs  wi l l  rece ive le t ters .  These

l e t t e r s  w e r e  m a i l e d  t o d a y .  T h e r e  a r e  9 7 2  n o n - f i l e r  l e t t e r s .  I f  C o u n c i l  i s

contacted, please direct communications directly to RITA www.ritaohio.com or by

having them call 1-800-860-7482



C I T Y

O F F I C E  O F  T H E  C I T Y  M A N A G E R

Michael A. Novotny

City Manager Report

October 2, 2024

Dunkin Donuts - Construction is progressing building shell is up.

Street Paving - Street paving has started.There has been some prep work completed and today

paving was being done on Church Street. Very interesting paving process utilizing the grindings from the road,
mixing them and putting fresh asphalt down out of the back of the machine.

Rite Aid Building - I had a meeting with the owner's real estate broker. They are looking at potential
buyers or tenants for the building. They had some questions about the design of the building and occupancy
which I have asked for input from the Fire Chief on and will relay this information back when I receive it.

Harvest Festival - The school levy committee has asked to use the city park and pavilions for this event.

I am working with them on using the park for this event. There will be more information on this event coming
from the committee as they finalize their event.

Sincerely,

Michael A. Novotry

Michael A. Novotny

Interim City Manager

Village of Newton Falls

612 West Broad St. Newton Falls, Ohio 44444 Phone: 330-872-0806 Fax: 330-872-0544



How is Mr. Denton Contrill's case coming along?

What humanitarian ideas are there to take care of the homeless situation in our

town? A citizen of Newton Falls called me the other day and asked what could be

done about the homeless people wandering around town. There was a

gentleman sleeping in or by the Gazebo for a few days. While walking in the

cemetery facing Ridge Road, a gentleman was watching one of our citizens. True,

maybe he is completely harmless, but ... I feel that our citizens should be given
first priority as to making them safe while out by themselves. I know times are

different today, but I remember when my seven or eight year old son could walk
uptown to Talanca's Bakery and get a doughnut and there was no worry. Now,
that is not the case.



VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO 
RESOLUTION NO: 07-2024 
SPONSOR: Councilpersons Stimpert and  
 

A RESOLUTION RESCINDING RESOLUTION 38-2023 AND DISSOLVING THE 
COMMUNITY SERVICES AND ACTIVITIES COMMITTEE PREVIOUSLY ESTABLISHED TO 

SOLICIT, EVALUATE, AND RECOMMEND OPTIONS RELATED TO COMMUNITY AND 
SENIOR SERVICES AND ACTIVITIES PROVIDED BY THE VILLAGE 

 
WHEREAS, by Resolution 38-2023 adopted on December 6, 2023 Council established the 
Community Services and Activities Committee; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Community Services and Activities Committee was tasked with soliciting 
ideas, evaluating options, and providing recommendations for how to best provide, fund, and 
sustain desired community and senior services and activities through volunteers and without 
the use of taxpayer funds; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Community Services and Activities Committee lacks sufficient members to 
hold monthly meetings; and 
 
WHEREAS, Village administration has since established effective communications with Village 
residents, Council, local entities and state organizations to address the previous need for the 
Community Services and Activities Committee; and 
 
WHEREAS, Council now desires to rescind Resolution 38-2023 and dissolve the Community 
Services and Activities Committee; and   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the Village of Newton Falls, Ohio: 
 
Section 1. That Resolution 38-2023 adopted on December 6, 2023 is hereby rescinded and 
shall be of no further force or effect.  
 
Section 2. That the Community Services and Activities Committee will cease to exist and will 
no longer obtain public input, evaluation, recommendations, and support regarding existing 
and new community and senior programs, services, and activities. 
 
Section 3. That all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the adoption of this 
Resolution were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and all deliberations of this Council 
or any of its committees that resulted in such formal action were taken in meetings open to the 
public and/or in compliance with all legal requirements, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio 
Revised Code. 



RESOLUTION NO: 07-2024 
PAGE 2 
 
Section 4. That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption in accordance with 
Article III, Section 22 of the Charter of Newton Falls. 
 
PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS _______ DAY OF _______________________, 2024 
 

 
 

_________________________________ 
                   David Hanson, Mayor 

 
_________________________________ 

 Attest:                                                                      Michael Acomb, Clerk of Council 
 

_________________________________ 
Approved as to Legal Form:                                        Jeff Limbian, Law Director 







VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO 
ORDINANCE NO.: 2024-44 
SPONSOR: Councilpersons Axiotis, Rufener 
 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF THE 2023 NPP POWER POOL 
PARTICIPANT SCHEDULE WITH AMERICAN MUNICIPAL POWER, INC. (“AMP”) 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Newton Falls, Ohio (the "Municipality"), is a political 

subdivision organized and existing pursuant to the laws of the State of Ohio that owns 
and operates an electric utility system for the sale of electric capacity and associated 
energy for the benefit of its citizens and customers; and 
 

WHEREAS, Municipality is located in the PJM Interconnection, LLC (“PJM”) 
transmission system territory and is subject to the PJM transmission system regulations 
and costs as set forth in the PJM Governing Documents; and 
 

WHEREAS, in order to satisfy the electric capacity, energy and other 
requirements of its electric utility system, the Municipality has heretofore purchased 
economical and reliable capacity, energy and related services from American Municipal 
Power, Inc. (“AMP”), an Ohio non-profit corporation, of which the Municipality is a 
member, or has heretofore purchased capacity and energy arranged by AMP; and 
 

WHEREAS, in order to take advantage of economies of scale and to recognize the 
joint scheduling, interconnection and operation, and transmission arrangements that AMP 
Members located in the ATSI transmission zone coordinate and share through AMP, 
those Members desire to form a combined pool NPP to jointly purchase, manage and 
coordinate power supplies and related services for Members executing this Schedule; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, Municipality and AMP desire to enter into a Power Pool Schedule 

(“Schedule”) for the purpose of: (i) energy, capacity and related product scheduling and 
operations under the PJM Governing Documents and (ii) economic purchases of 
capacity, energy and related products for the beneficial use of Pool Participants. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY the Council of the Village of Newton Falls 
Ohio:  
 

SECTION 1. That the form of 2023 NPP Power Pool Participant Schedule 
attached hereto as “Exhibit A” including Appendices thereto between this Municipality 
and AMP, be, and the same hereby is approved substantially in the form attached hereto, 
subject to and with any and all changes provided herein and therein. 
 
 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE 2024-44 
PAGE TWO 
 

SECTION 2. That the Finance Director is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute and deliver on behalf of this Municipality the 2023 NPP Power Pool Participant 
Schedule, substantially in the form attached hereto as “Exhibit A.” 
 

SECTION 3. That the Municipality authorizes AMP to purchase on the 
Municipality's behalf, in accordance with the procedures set forth in the 2023 NPP Power 
Pool Participant Schedule, and Municipality agrees to reimburse AMP for all costs 
incurred by AMP for Pool Resources and services plus any service fees associated with 
the purchase of Pool Resources and services set forth therein. 
 

SECTION 4.  That the Electric Superintendent is hereby designated as 
Municipality's authorized personnel to approve and authorize AMP’s acquisition of Pool 
Resources and to vote on Pool activities in accordance with the terms and conditions in 
the 2023 NPP Power Pool Participant Schedule on behalf of Municipality. 
 

SECTION 5. That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council 
concerning and relating to the adoption of this ordinance were adopted in an open 
meeting of the Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its 
committees that resulted in such formal action were in meetings open to the public and 
in compliance with all legal requirements. 

SECTION 6. If any section, subsection, paragraph, clause or provision of any part 
thereof of this ordinance shall be finally adjudicated by a court of competent jurisdiction 
to be invalid, the remainder of this ordinance shall be unaffected by such adjudication 
and all the remaining provisions of the ordinance shall remain in full force and effect as 
though such section,  subsection, paragraph,  clause or provision or any part thereof so 
adjudicated to be invalid had not, to the extent of such invalidity, been included herein. 
 

SECTION 6. That this Ordinance shall be effective as of the earliest date 
permitted by law. 
 

PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS _____ DAY OF _______________, 2024. 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 

David Hanson, Mayor 
 
           Attest:      _____________________________________  

Michael Acomb, Clerk of Council  
Approved as to Legal Form. 

      _____________________________________ 
      Jeff Limbian, Law Director 



AMP Contract No. 2024-009435-SCHED

1

CITY OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO
2023 NPP POWER POOL PARTICIPANT SCHEDULE

TO
AMERICAN MUNICIPAL POWER, INC.

AND
CITY OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO

MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT 
(AMP CONTRACT NO. C-11-2005-4428

WHEREAS, the City of Newton Falls, Ohio (“Municipality”) and American 
Municipal Power, Inc. (“AMP”) collectively (“Parties”) have entered into a Master Service 
Agreement (“Agreement”) under which certain services may be provided under 
schedules thereto; and

WHEREAS, in order to take advantage of economies of scale and to recognize 
the joint scheduling, interconnection and operation, and transmission arrangements that 
AMP Members located in the ATSI transmission zone coordinate and share through 
AMP, those Members desire to form a combined pool NPP to jointly purchase, manage 
and coordinate power supplies and related services for Members executing this 
Schedule; and

WHEREAS, Municipality and AMP desire to enter into this Northern Power Pool 
Schedule (“Schedule”) for the purpose of: (i) energy, capacity and related product 
scheduling and operations under the PJM Governing Documents and (ii) economic 
purchases of capacity, energy and related products for the beneficial use of Pool 
Participants.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the following mutual promises, AMP and 
Municipality agree as follows:

SECTION 1.  DEFINITIONS 
As used in this Agreement, the terms that are defined in the PJM Governing Documents 
shall have the definitions provided therein, and the following defined terms shall have 
the respective meanings set forth below: 

 (a) 1CP - The hour of each of Transmission Zone’s single highest load during 
the previous Delivery Year.

5CPs - The hour of each of PJM’s five highest coincident peak loads 
during the previous calendar year used by PJM to determine load’s 
Installed Capacity Demand.

(b) Allowable Non-Pool Power – The maximum amount of Non-Pool Power 



AMP Contract No. 2024-009435-SCHED

2

that a Pool Participant can utilize for the upcoming year.  During the Term 
of this Schedule, there will not be a limit on Non-Pool Power unless the 
Pool has purchased Pool Power for a term greater than one (1) year 
according to the procedures in Section 4.A.

(c) Applicable Law – All federal, state and local law and regulations including 
but not limited to the Federal Power Act, the Regional Transmission 
Organization’s Governing Documents, the terms and conditions of any 
Interconnection and Operating agreements entered into with the 
interconnecting Transmission Zone whether directly by the Pool 
Participant or by AMP on behalf of the Pool Participant, and the 
interconnecting Transmission Zone’s requirements. 

(d) Applicable Technical Standards -- Those certain technical requirements 
and standards applicable to the interconnection of Pool Participant to 
Transmission Facilities, the PJM Governing Documents; and the 
standards, requirements and guidelines of NERC and each applicable 
NERC Regional Entity.

(e) Behind the Meter Generation (“BTMG”) – A generation unit that delivers 
energy to load without using the transmission system or any Municipal 
distribution facilities (unless the Municipality consented to such use of the 
distribution facilities and such consent has been demonstrated to the 
satisfaction of PJM); provided, however, that BTMG does not include: (i) at 
any time, any portion of such generating unit’s capacity that is designated 
as a Generation Capacity Resource; or (ii) in an hour, any portion of the 
output of such generating unit that is sold to another entity for 
consumption at another electrical location or into the PJM Energy Market.

(f) Capacity Pool – Device by which installed capacity is supplied under this 
Schedule to Pool Participants.

(g) Capacity Pool Participant(s) – AMP Members receiving installed capacity 
service from AMP under this Schedule.

(h) Capacity Pool Resource – Source of capacity of the Capacity Pool for the 
benefit of the Capacity Pool Participants.

(i) Day Ahead LMP – The hourly forward market price for each pricing point 
on the PJM system calculated by PJM and posted daily around 1:30 pm 
EPT for the upcoming day, pursuant to the Day Ahead Energy Market 
rules set forth in the PJM Governing Documents.

(j) Delivery Period – The period of time when a Pool Resource is scheduled 



AMP Contract No. 2024-009435-SCHED

3

and delivered to Pool Participants’ Delivery Points.

(k) Delivery Point(s) – The location of Pool Participants’ existing facilities 
connecting their respective electric distribution systems to the 
interconnecting Transmission Zone’s transmission facilities as set forth in 
Interconnection and Operating Agreements.

(l) Delivery Year – the period from November 1 through October 31 prior to 
the start of the January 1 calendar year.  For example, the Delivery Year 
for the 2024 calendar year is November 1, 2022 through October 31, 
2023.

(m) Dispatch Center Costs –The cost for AMP’s dispatch center personnel, 
facilities, SCADA equipment required for monitoring loads, etc., that are 
allocated monthly to users of the AMP dispatch center.

(n) Energy Obligation – Each Energy Pool Participant’s hourly energy needs, 
including transmission and distribution losses as further defined in Section 
4(A).

(o) Energy Pool – Device by which energy is supplied under this Schedule to 
Pool Participants.

(p) Energy Pool Participant(s) – AMP Members receiving energy service from 
AMP under this Schedule.

(q) Energy Pool Resource – Source of electric energy or related services to 
the extent the same is utilized to provide, or is obligated to provide energy 
or related services to the Energy Pool for the benefit of the Energy Pool 
Participants.

(r) Energy Requirement – Each Energy Pool Participant’s Energy Obligation 
minus Non-Pool Energy.

(s) Financial Transmission Right or FTR is a right to receive Transmission 
Congestion Credits as specified in the PJM Governing Documents.

(t) Generation Schedule – Pool Participant’s hour-by-hour schedule of 
Municipal BTMG or Day Ahead Load Request as designated in Exhibit A. 
The deadline for submitting the Generation Schedule for the next day is 
10:00 am EPT.

(u) “Good Utility Practice” - Any of the practices, methods and acts engaged 
in or approved by a significant portion of the electric utility industry during 



AMP Contract No. 2024-009435-SCHED

4

the relevant time period, or any of the practices, methods and acts which, 
in the exercise of reasonable judgment in light of the facts known at the 
time the decision was made, could have been expected to accomplish the 
desired result at a reasonable cost consistent with good business 
practices, reliability, safety and expedition.  Good Utility Practice is not 
intended to be limited to the optimum practice, method, or act to the 
exclusion of all others, but rather to be acceptable practices, methods, or 
acts generally accepted in the region.

(v) Interconnection and Operating Agreements - Agreements entered into by 
and between either a Pool Participant and a Transmission Zone or AMP 
on behalf of one or more Pool Participants and a Transmission Zone to 
establish the terms and conditions for the interconnection and coordinated 
operation of the Pool Participants’ electric distribution systems and their 
use of certain transmission and/or distribution facilities to serve their 
respective wholesale loads, which are separate from the rates, terms and 
conditions of transmission service provided by PJM under the PJM 
Governing Documents.  

(w) Locational Marginal Prices or LMP – PJM’s hourly integrated locational 
marginal price for energy that is received or delivered.

(x) Majority Vote means both:
(i) A majority of the Pool Participants with each Pool Participant 

receiving one vote; and
(ii) Pool Participants representing a majority of the annual Energy 

Obligations (as calculated in Section 4.A for the previous calendar 
year for all of the Pool Participants.  

(y) Non-Pool Energy – Energy that is contracted for (through AMP) or owned 
or contracted for directly by the Pool Participant to serve its respective 
load and not a Pool Resource.  Some examples (although not an 
exhaustive list) of Non-Pool Energy include: a specific Pool Participants’ 
block and remaining requirements energy contracts.  

(z) Non-Pool Power – Energy, capacity and other related products that are 
contracted for (through AMP) or owned or contracted for directly by the 
Pool Participant to serve its respective load and not a Pool Resource.  
Some examples (although not an exhaustive list) of Non-Pool Power 
include: a specific Pool Participants’ project shares of AFEC, NYPA, 
Prairie State, landfill or solar power resources, certain block and remaining 
requirements energy contracts and demand response resources.  Non-
Pool Power shall also include Bilateral Sales made by Pool Participants.

(aa) Non-Pool Power Deadline – In order for the Energy Pool Resources to be 



AMP Contract No. 2024-009435-SCHED

5

properly planned and fairly allocated, Pool Participants shall not acquire 
additional Non-Pool Resources or sell a portion of their Non-Pool 
Resources for the upcoming year after October 1.  The deadline may be 
waived if AMP determines that the acquisition or sale of Non-Pool 
Resources will not impact the power costs of the remaining Energy Pool 
Participants. 

(ab) PJM - PJM Interconnection L.L.C., a regional transmission organization.

(ac) PJM Governing Documents - PJM’s Open Access Transmission Tariff, 
Operating Agreement and Reliability Assurance Agreement as on file with 
FERC and in effect as well as PJM Manuals.

(ad) Pool Participant(s) - AMP Members who execute a Schedule substantially 
in the form of this Schedule for service from AMP.

(ae) Pool Participant Average Coincident Peak Load – For the previous 
calendar year, the 12 month average of a Pool Participant’s total load at 
the hour of each month’s Total Pool Participants’ Peak Load.

(af) Pool Resource – Any or all Energy Pool Resource, Capacity Pool 
Resource or FTRs.

(ag) Pricing Point – the Pricing Point for settlements under this Schedule shall 
be as set forth in Exhibit C, attached hereto and incorporated herein.  

(ah) Real Time LMP – Hourly integrated market price for each pricing point on 
the PJM system calculated by PJM during the operating day.

(ai) Renewable Energy Credits (“RECs”) - Environmental attributes 
associated with the generation of electricity from one or more renewable 
resources and the reporting rights associated with such environmental 
attributes, which include all of the characteristics of energy produced from 
an eligible renewable resources (other than the underlying energy itself) 
which may be unbundled or separated from the energy (but without any 
unbundling or separation of any such characteristics from each other) for 
the purposes of enabling their sale such that title to the energy and title to 
the environmental attributes may be held by different persons.

(aj) Total Pool Participants’ Coincident Peak Load – For a calendar month, the 
maximum coincident hourly sum in kilowatts measured at all Delivery 
Points of all Pool Participants, plus the net generation from any generation 
electrically connected to any Pool Participant's municipal electric system.

(ak) Transmission Zones –Transmission system zone in which Municipality’s 



AMP Contract No. 2024-009435-SCHED

6

service area is interconnected to.  

SECTION 2. REPRESENTATIONS

(A) Each Party has full legal right and authority to enter into this Schedule, to carry 
out its obligations hereunder and to provide and receive the products and 
services provided herein.

(B) Each Party shall comply with Good Utility Practice, Applicable Technical 
Standards, PJM Governing Documents and Applicable Laws in performing its 
respective obligations and responsibilities under this Schedule.  

(C) Each Party will inform the other of any changes to its respective facilities or 
needs that might reasonably be expected to affect the products or services 
provided hereunder.

SECTION 3.  TERM

Subject to the conditions contained herein, this Schedule shall be for a term beginning 
on January 1, 2024 (the “Effective Date”) and ending December 31, 2030.  This 
Schedule will continue for successive one-year terms thereafter unless either Party 
provides written notice of termination to the other Party by no later than twenty-four (24) 
months before the then current term ends.  

In the event that a Pool Participant terminates this Schedule prior to the ending date of 
any Pool Resource, the Pool Participant shall be financially responsible for the positive 
differential between (1) the actual cost of the unused portion of the Pool Resource until 
the expiration of the Pool Resource, and (2) the market value of the unused portion of 
the Pool Resource, as determined by AMP.  After a Pool Participant has provided notice 
of termination to AMP, any purchases of Pool Resources shall carve out the notifying 
Pool Participant’s Pool Requirements and such Pool Participant will not be responsible 
for that Pool Resource and will not benefit from the Pool Resource.  

The method for calculating the Pool Participant’s financial obligation for the unused 
portion of the Pool Resource shall be based on the Participant’s percentage share of 
the annual total Pool Resources for the last calendar year prior to the date that 
termination was given.  



AMP Contract No. 2024-009435-SCHED

7

SECTION 4.  POOL REQUIREMENTS SERVICES

Subject to provisions of this Schedule, AMP shall be the Pool Requirements provider of 
all electric energy and capacity required by Pool Participants for purposes of providing 
electric service to Pool Participants’ retail customers and to the Pool Participants as 
users of electric service.  Pool Participants shall take and pay for the same in 
accordance with this Schedule. AMP shall provide such Pool Requirements Service in a 
prudent manner so as to provide reliable electric service to Pool Participants at the 
lowest overall cost consistent with available sources as further described in this 
Schedule.

AMP shall provide Pool Participants, energy, capacity and related services from Pool 
Resources for the benefit of all Pool Participants by purchasing various economical Pool 
Resources from time to time subject to the provisions of this Schedule.  Such Pool 
Resources shall include, but shall not be limited to, purchases or sales of short-term 
energy sources, RECs, generation owned and operated by Pool Participants or other 
municipal systems and generation owned and operated by AMP, transmission and 
related services, or a combination of the above.  

AMP shall provide the Pool Requirements Service to the Pool Participants as follows.

A. ENERGY POOL REQUIREMENTS SERVICE

AMP shall procure Energy Pool Resources on behalf of Pool Participants for periods of 
one (1) year or less, up to twenty-four (24) months in advance of the Delivery Period of 
the resource.  Energy Pool Resources may exceed one (1) year only with the express 
written authorization of each Pool Participant. 

Energy Obligations shall be calculated on an hourly basis as follows.  

Each Pool Participant’s Energy Obligation shall be equal to the metered kilowatt-hour tie 
line meter plus any Behind the Meter Generation plus Transmission Losses plus 
Distribution Losses or the Pool Participant’s Generation Schedule (if Option B is 
utilized),

Where Transmission Losses equal the metered kilowatt-hour tie line meter 
multiplied by the Transmission Loss Factor; and,

Distribution Losses equal the metered kilowatt-hour tie line meter multiplied by 
the Distribution Loss Factor.



AMP Contract No. 2024-009435-SCHED

8

Participant

Tie 
Line 
Meter 
(A)

BTMG 
(B)

Transmission/ 
Distribution 
Loss Factor 
(C)

Transmission 
and 
Distribution 
Losses 
(D=AxC)

Generation 
Schedule (E) If 

Using Opt B 
under Gen 
Deviation

Total Energy 
Obligation
F=(A+B+D) or G

Participant 1 
(No Gen)

1000 
kWh - 3.0% 30 kWh

-
1030 kWh

Participant 2 
(BTMG Gen)

1000 
kWh

500 
kWh 8.0% 80 kWh

-
1580 kWh

Participant 3 
(Using Opt B 
– Fixed Load 
Sched) N/A - 1000 kWh 1000 kWh

Pool Participant’s Energy Obligation shall first be filled by Pool Participant’s Non-Pool 
Power; provided however, the Pool Participant is solely responsible for the delivery of  
the Non-Pool Power, and to the extent Pool Participant’s Non-Pool Power is not, for any 
reason, delivered at any time during the Term, AMP shall provide replacement energy, 
to the extent the same is available, to make up for any shortfall of Non-Pool Power from 
the Energy Pool.  

The Non-Pool Energy that the Pool Participant shall utilize to meet its Energy Obligation 
for the upcoming calendar year shall not be changed after the Non-Pool Deadline.

In the event that Pool Participant is utilizing BTMG (option A or C) as Non-Pool Power, 
the hourly Non-Pool Power energy credit shall be equal to the Generation Schedule 
(Option A) or actual Municipal BTMG (Option C). 

All Energy Pool Resources and Non-Pool Power shall be arranged, scheduled, and 
dispatched, subject to contractual limitations, by AMP, which shall do so in such a 
manner as to provide the lowest overall cost consistent with reliability, prudence and all 
contractual limitations.

Pool Participant's remaining energy requirements after Non-Pool Power shall be filled 
from the Energy Pool.  

If Pool Participant’s Non-Pool Power is greater than Pool Participant’s Energy 
Obligation for any hour, Pool Participant shall sell the excess energy to the Energy Pool 
at the PJM Day Ahead LMP rate for the PJM Pricing Point.  

If Pool Participant’s Non-Pool Power is less than Pool Participant’s Energy Obligation 
for any hour, Pool Participant shall purchase remaining energy needs from the Energy 
Pool at the PJM Day Ahead LMP rate for the PJM Pricing Point times a Power Cost 
Adjustment (“PCA”) calculated to recover all of the power supply costs incurred by the 
Energy Pool for the month as follows.   



AMP Contract No. 2024-009435-SCHED

9

The PCA shall equal the Total Energy Pool Resources Costs (including Inadvertent 
Energy Costs and Costs to move to Ancillary Services to keep PCA within allowable 
bandwidth)
divided by the sum of (each Pool Participant’s hourly Energy Pool Requirements 
multiplied by the hourly Day Ahead LMP).   

The PCA shall not be greater than 1.50 and not less than 0.50.  In the event that the 
PCA would exceed those limits, then an amount of dollars (positive or negative) would 
be transferred from the Energy Pool to Ancillary Services to bring the PCA back to its 
limit. 

An example of the PCA calculation is shown below.

Participant Net kWh Cost
Market Purchases from PJM        2,220,000  $                  102,000 
Purchase of Member Excess at DA LMP             50,000  $                      2,000 
Pool Monthly Block Purchase           320,000  $                      9,600 
Pool Daily Block Purchase           108,000  $                      5,400 
Congestion and Losses on Pool Resources  $                         100 
Generation Deviation Purchases/Sales             10,160  $                         600 
Calculated Inadvertent Energy  $                    (5,000)
Costs to move to Ancillary Services to keep 
PCA within allowable bandwidth

$ 0

Total Energy Pool Resources Costs        2,708,160  $                  114,700 
Total Pool Requirements at DA LMP        2,708,160  $                  113,736 
Pool PCA  $114,700/$113,736 = 1.0084757 



AMP Contract No. 2024-009435-SCHED

10

Inadvertent Energy Costs are calculated to divide real time energy market purchases 
and sales between Energy Pool and ancillary services as set forth below. 
 

B. GENERATION SCHEDULE DEVIATION SERVICE 

AMP shall provide Generation Deviation Service to Pool Participants as follows:  

(1) For BTMG under option A and D in Exhibit A:  The generation deviation 
requirements of the Pool Participant shall be calculated on an hourly basis 
as follows:

Generation Deviation energy purchase or sale (if negative) shall be 
equal to Pool Participant’s Generation Schedule minus the net 
actual BTMG.

(2) For Day Ahead Load under option B in Exhibit A:  The generation 
deviation requirements of the Pool Participant shall be calculated on an 
hourly basis as follows:

Generation Deviation energy purchase or sale (if negative) shall be 
equal to Pool Participant’s Energy Obligation minus Pool 
Participant’s Generation Schedule;

(3) Sales and purchases of Generation Deviation Energy shall be at the PJM 
Real Time LMP for the PJM Pricing Point.  

Generation Deviation shall be calculated on an hourly basis.  An example of the 
Generation Deviation calculations is shown below.

Participant BTMG (A)
Generation Schedule 
(B)

Participant 
Energy 
Obligation 
(C)

Generation 
Deviation          
(D=A-B-C)*

Participant  using Option A 1500 kWh 700 kWh N/A 800 kWh



AMP Contract No. 2024-009435-SCHED

11

Participant  using Option B N/A
9000 kWh (Load 
Sched) 2900 kWh (2000) kWh

Participant  using Option C N/A
No schedule submitted 
(Non-Pool = Gen) N/A 0 kWh

Participant  using Option D 500 kWh
No schedule submitted 
(all Gen sold to RealTime) N/A 500 kWh

*Positive means sale, negative means purchase

C. DEMAND RELATED TRANSMISSION COSTS

Subject to provisions of this Schedule, AMP shall be the transmission requirements 
provider of all PJM transmission service required by Pool Participant to provide electric 
service to Pool Participant’s customers.  Pool Participant shall take and pay for the 
same in accordance with this Schedule.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this 
agreement shall prohibit any Pool Participant from contacting, coordinating, requesting 
or obtaining technical or other information or interfacing in any way with PJM or 
Transmission Zones regarding facilities, technical, equipment, engineering or other 
issues regarding Pool Participant-owned facilities, point of contact equipment or service 
in accordance with the terms and conditions of any applicable Interconnection 
Agreements.

The transmission rate in dollars per kilowatt-month ($/kW-mo) shall include the 
Transmission Zone network transmission service charges as well as other 1CP related 
charges listed in Exhibit A (including any transmission peak shaving savings from 
behind the meter generation located in Pool Participant’s distribution system).  The 
credit or charge shall be calculated in the same manner as that calculated by PJM.  

Transmission Demand shall be calculated on a monthly basis as follows:

Pool Participant’s Tie Line Meter + BTMG Meter at the 1CP plus any 1CP 
adders assessed by PJM for failure of BTMG to operate at their PJM 
BTMG obligation during PJM Max Emergency Generation events during 
the previous year pursuant to the PJM Governing Documents.

An example of Transmission Demand calculations is listed below (penalty).

Participant Tie Line 
Meter at 
1CP (A)

BTMG at 
1CP    (B)

1CP Adder for 
BTMG Failure 
during PJM 

Emergency (C)

Total 
Transmission 

Demand 
(D=A+B+C)

Participant 1 1000 kW 1000 kW
Participant 2 1000 kW 500 kW 1500 kW
Participant 4 1000 kW 300 kW 30 kW 1330 kW
Participant 4 (1000) kW 4000 kW 30000 kW



AMP Contract No. 2024-009435-SCHED

12

D. ENERGY RELATED ANCILLARY COSTS

Subject to provisions of this Schedule, AMP shall be the ancillary services requirements 
provider of all ancillary services required by Pool Participant to provide electric service 
to Pool Participant’s customers.  Pool Participant shall take and pay for the same in 
accordance with this Schedule.

The ancillary services transmission rate in dollars per megawatt-hour ($/MWh) shall be 
equal to:

Energy based ancillary service charges as listed in Exhibit B (including, for 
example, PJM and AMP scheduling and inadvertent charges, operating reserves, 
economic load response charges/credits, PJM interchange meter correction 
charges and transmission loss credits), plus charges or credits for FTRs 
purchased on behalf of Pool Participants divided by the sum of monthly energy 
requirements for each Pool Participant.

An example of monthly energy requirements calculations is below.

Participant Monthly Tie 
Line Meter (A)

Monthly 
BTMG  (B)

Transmission/
Distribution 
Loss Factor   

(C)

Transmission 
Losses 
(D=AxC)

Total Monthly 
Energy 

Requirements 
(E=A+B+D)

Participant 1 100,000 kWh 3% 3000 kWh 103,000 kWh

Participant 2 100,000 kWh 50,000 kWh 8% 8000 kWh 158,000 kWh

Participant 3 (100,000) kWh 400,000 kWh 3% (3000) kWh 297,000 kWh

E. CAPACITY POOL REQUIREMENTS SERVICE

Subject to provisions of this Schedule, AMP shall be the provider of capacity required by 
Pool Participant to meet PJM capacity requirements, provided that Pool Participant may 
purchase PJM capacity from suppliers other than AMP with AMP’s approval, which shall 
not be unreasonably withheld.   Pool Participant shall take and pay for capacity from 
AMP in accordance with this Schedule.  

Pool Participant’s capacity requirements shall be calculated on a monthly basis as 
follows:

Pool Participant’s purchase of capacity shall be equal to the average Tie 
Line Meter + BTMG Meter at the 5CP plus any 5CP adders assessed by 
PJM for failure of BTMG to operate at their PJM BTMG obligation during 
PJM Max Emergency Generation events during the previous year.

An example of Capacity Demand calculations is listed below.



AMP Contract No. 2024-009435-SCHED

13

Participant Tie Line 
Meter at 
5CP (A)

BTMG at 
5CP    
(B)

5CP Adder for 
BTMG Failure 
during PJM 

Emergency (C)

Total 
Capacity 

Requireme
nts 

(D=A+B+C
)

Participant 1 1000 kW 1000 kW
Participant 2 1000 kW 500 kW 1500 kW

Participant 3 1000 kW 300 kW
30 kW 13300 

kW

Participant 4
(1000) 
kW 4000kW 3000 kW

Pool Participant’s purchase of Capacity Pool Requirements Service shall be at the 
monthly rate calculated in dollars per kilowatt-month ($/kW-mo) and shall be equal to:

Net cost of capacity charges and credits as listed in Exhibit B (including, 
for example, purchases or sales from the PJM capacity market, any 
installed capacity peak shaving savings from BTMG located in Pool 
Participant’s distribution system, any bilateral transactions, and any PJM 
capacity penalties or bonus payments attributed to any Capacity Pool 
Resources)

divided by Total Capacity Requirements.

Due to the nature of the PJM capacity auctions, AMP is authorized to procure Capacity 
Pool Resources for periods of one year or less up to sixty (60) months in advance of the 
Delivery Period.  AMP shall not procure Capacity Pool Resources that will obligate 
AMP, and therefore any Capacity Pool Participants, for periods greater than one (1) 
year, unless each Capacity Pool Participant authorizes the same by affirmative consent 
in writing.    

AMP shall distribute demand response credits or charges or capacity auction credits or 
charges from PJM attributed to Pool Participant’s Non-Pool Power that are entitled to 
the same from PJM.

F. FTRs, CONGESTION and LOSSES

AMP shall procure FTRs on behalf of Pool Participants for periods of one (1) year or 
less, up to forty-eight (48) months in advance of the Delivery Period.  

AMP shall provide a net credit or charge to Pool Participant based on FTRs held by 
AMP on behalf of Pool Participant for the Pool Participant’s Non-Pool Power.  

AMP shall provide a credit or charge to Pool Participant based on congestion billed by 



AMP Contract No. 2024-009435-SCHED

14

PJM to AMP associated with delivery of Pool Participant’s Non-Pool Power.  The credit 
or charge shall be calculated in the same manner as that calculated by PJM.  

AMP shall provide a credit or charge to Pool Participant based on marginal losses billed 
by PJM to AMP associated with delivery of Pool Participant’s Non-Pool Power.  The 
credit or charge shall be calculated in the same manner as that calculated by PJM.  

SECTION 5. RATES, CHARGES AND BILLING

(1) Pool Participant shall be charged and billed by AMP, in accordance with 
Section 7 of the Master Services Agreement, for all costs incurred in 
providing Pool Resource Services, including but not limited to all electric 
capacity and energy, Non-Pool Power and transmission related charges, if 
any, determined in accordance with this schedule.  The charges will 
include all costs to AMP listed in Exhibit B, (based on known PJM charges 
as of June 1, 2023).  

(2) The following charges are not Pool-related and shall be billed to the Pool 
Participant by AMP at cost in the same manner as billed by PJM and 
Transmission Zone:

(a) Reactive and Power Factor Correction Charges from PJM or 
Transmission Zone,

(b) PJM or Transmission Zone Customer and Metering 
Charges,

(c) Transmission Zone Interconnection and Local Delivery 
Service Charges, including but not limited to distribution 
voltage delivery charges, and

(d) State taxes billed by PJM or Transmission Zone.



AMP Contract No. 2024-009435-SCHED

15

(3) Dispatch Center Costs allocated to the Pool will be allocated to Pool 
Participant based on Pool Participant’s pro rata share of the Pool 
Participants’ Average Coincident Peak Load.  A credit in kW will be given 
to Pool Participant for any Non-Pool Power resources that include AMP 
Dispatch Center Costs in the rate.  An example of a Dispatch Center Cost 
pro rata share calculation is listed below: 

Participant Pool 
Participant 

Average 
Coincident 

Peak Load (A)

Non-Pool 
Resources that 

include Dispatch 
Center Costs (B)

kW Allocation of 
Dispatch Center 
Costs   (C=A-B) 
(Max of 0 kW)

Percentage 
Allocation of 

Dispatch Center 
Costs (D)

Participant 1 1000 kW 400 kW 600 kW 12%
Participant 2 1400 kW 0 1400 kW 28%
Participant 3 700 kW 1000 kW 0 kW 0%
Participant 4 1300 kW 300 kW 1000 kW 20%
Participant 5 3000 kW 1000 kW 2000 kW 40%
Total 5000 kW 100%

(4) Pool Participant shall pay AMP's Service Fee B ($0.00058 / kWh as of 
January 1, 2023) for all energy sold or arranged for and delivered 
pursuant to this Schedule.  

SECTION 6. DELIVERY POINTS AND INTERCONNECTION POINTS

The initial Delivery Point(s) pursuant to this Schedule shall be the point(s) where the 
facilities of Pool Participant currently are electrically connected to the transmission 
system. Changes to or additional delivery points shall be arranged subject to 
negotiations with the interconnecting Transmission Zone or the orders of any tribunal of 
competent jurisdiction.

SECTION 7. SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

(1) Unless otherwise agreed, Pool Participant shall provide, or cause to be 
provided, at no cost to AMP, at each Delivery Point suitable space for 
metering, monitoring or communications equipment reasonably required 
by AMP.

Unless otherwise agreed, the Transmission Zone has installed suitable 
meters for the purpose of determining billing quantities hereunder.  All 
meters and metering equipment installed by the Transmission Zone are 
and shall remain property of the Transmission Zone.



AMP Contract No. 2024-009435-SCHED

16

Transmission Zone has agreed to provide to AMP and for AMP's use, 
metering data from each of the meters employed hereunder.  Pool 
Participant shall provide or cause to be provided, at its expense, to AMP 
real time metering data from any generating facilities operated within Pool 
Participant's distribution system.  

(2) The Parties shall keep such records as may be needed to afford a clear 
history of all transactions under this Schedule.  The originals of all such 
records shall be retained by each Party for a minimum of three (3) years 
and copies shall be delivered to the other Party upon request.

(3) Changes to this Pool Agreement, including but not limited to additions of 
new products as Pool Resources, modifications to address changes to the 
applicable rules as set forth in the PJM Governing Documents or additions 
to or removal of any Pool Participants may be added to the Pool only with 
the written or verbal approval of a Majority Vote of the Pool Participants 
then participating in the Pool.  

(4) In the event that the Pool Participant enacts an ordinance or institutes a 
policy that allows its customers the choice to purchase their electricity 
from a supplier other than Pool Participant (hereinafter “customer choice”) 
prior to the ending date of a Pool Resource, the Pool Participant shall 
continue to be financially responsible for that share of the Pool Resource 
that the Pool Participant would have used (based on actual usage from 
the previous calendar year) but for exercise of the choice of one or more 
of its customers to purchase their electricity from a supplier other than 
Pool Participant, until the  expiration of the Pool Resource or the 
customer(s) returns to the Pool Participant’s system.  

The method for calculating the financial impact of the unused portion of 
the Pool Resource shall be based on the positive differential between (1) 
the actual cost of the unused portion of the Pool Resource, until the 
expiration of the Pool Resource, and (2) the market value of the unused 
portion of the Pool Resource, as determined by AMP. 

 (5) All terms and conditions of the Master Services Agreement in effect 
between the Parties that are not in conflict with the terms and conditions of 
this Schedule shall be applicable to this Schedule.



AMP Contract No. 2024-009435-SCHED

17

SECTION 8. MISCELLANEOUS

A. Assignment.  Neither this Agreement nor any interest therein shall be assigned 
by any Party without the prior written consent of the other Party.  

B. No Waiver.  A Party’s failure to insist in any one or more instances upon strict 
performance of any provision of the Agreement, or failure or delay to take 
advantage of any of its rights or remedies hereunder, violation, or default, shall 
not be construed as a waiver by the Party of any such performance, provision, 
right, breach, violation, or default, either then or for the future.  Any waiver shall 
be effective only if in writing and signed by each Party’s authorized 
representative, and only with respect to the particular case expressly covered 
therein.

C. Law and Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by, construed, and 
enforced in accordance with the law of the State of Ohio.  Any legal claim, suit, 
proceeding, or action brought by a Party shall be brought in an Ohio state court 
or a federal court located in Ohio.

D. Headings.  The headings assigned to the Articles of this Agreement are for 
convenience only and shall not limit the scope and applicability of the Articles.

E. Survival.  All provisions providing for limitation of or protection against loss or 
liability of the Parties, including all protections and indemnities, shall survive 
termination, suspension, cancellation or expiration of this Agreement.

F. Force Majeure.  The Parties acknowledge that Force Majeure events may affect 
the performance of this Agreement and agree that the Parties shall not be liable 
to each other for any breach or failure to perform under this Agreement caused 
by Force Majeure.  

G. Limitations of Liability.  The liability of a Party under this Agreement shall be 
limited to direct actual damages.  No Party shall be liable for any special, indirect, 
incidental, punitive, or consequential losses, damages, judgments, fines, 
penalties, costs or expenses whatsoever including, but not limited to: (i) delayed, 
lost or reduced profits, revenues, efficiency, productivity, business opportunities; 
or (ii) increased or extended overheads, operating, maintenance, depreciation, 
financing costs or expenses arising out of, related to, or in connection with the 
performance or breach of this Agreement whether based upon contract, tort 
(including negligence), warranty, strict liability or under any other legal or 
equitable theory.

SECTION 9. PRIOR SCHEDULES



AMP Contract No. 2024-009435-SCHED

18

Any Pool Schedules entered into by the Participant and any amendments thereto shall 
terminate on the Effective Date of this Schedule and shall no longer be of any force or 
effect after the Effective Date of this Schedule except to the extent billing or like matters 
remain outstanding.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as of 
the date written by their duly authorized representatives.

CITY OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO

BY:________________________

TITLE:_____________________

DATE: ____________________

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

__________________________
Municipality’s Legal Counsel

AMERICAN MUNICIPAL POWER, INC.

BY:_____________________________
Jolene M. Thompson
President/CEO

DATE: __________________________

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

BY: ____________________________
Lisa G. McAlister
General Counsel 



AMP Contract No. 2024-009435-SCHED

19

EXHIBIT A
GENERATION SCHEDULE

CITY OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO

GENERATION RESOURCE = [INSERT GENERATOR NAME/DESCRIPTION] 

A. __________ Pool Participant will submit a daily schedule to AMP of BTMG that will be 
treated as Non-Pool Power (i.e., the schedule will be the Non-Pool Power).

B. __________ Pool Participant wishes to serve a portion of its load at the Real Time LMP. 
Pool Participant will submit a daily schedule to AMP of the amount of its load that will be 
treated as Pool Participant’s Energy Obligation.  

C. __________ Pool Participant will NOT submit a daily schedule.  Pool Participant’s 
hourly schedule for BTMG shall be equal to actual output of BTMG, so that all output 
will be treated as Non-Pool Power. 

D. __________ Pool Participant will NOT submit a daily schedule.  Pool Participant’s 
hourly schedule shall be equal to 0 MW, so that actual output of BTMG will be credited 
at the Real Time LMP. 

An example of the Daily Schedule to be submitted under options A and B is shown below:



AMP Contract No. 2024-009435-SCHED

20

EXHIBIT B
ASSIGNMENT OF PJM AND POOL COSTS

BASED ON PJM CHARGES AS OF APRIL 1, 2023

PJM Line Item Pool 
Energy

Transmission
Demand

Ancillary Capacity Direct to 
Participant

1100 Network 
Integrated 
Transmission Service

X

1108 Transmission 
Enhancement

X

1109 MTEP Cost 
Recovery

X

1115 Transmission 
Enhancement 
Settlement

X

1120 Other Supporting 
Facilities

X

1130 Firm 
Transmission Service

X

1140 Non-Firm 
Transmission Service

X

1200 Day-ahead Spot 
Market Energy

X

1205 Balancing Spot 
Market Energy

X X

1210 Day Ahead 
Transmission 
Congestion

X X

1215 Balancing 
Transmission 
Congestion

X

1220 Day Ahead 
Transmission Losses

X X

1225 Balancing 
Transmission Losses

X

1230 Inadvertent 
Interchange

X

1242 Day-Ahead Load 
Response Allocation

X

1243 Real-Time Load 
Response Allocation

X

1245 Pre and 
Emergency Load 

X



AMP Contract No. 2024-009435-SCHED

21

Response
1250 Meter Error 
Correction

X

1301 PJM Control Area 
Administration

X

1302 PJM FTR 
Administration

X

1303 PJM Market 
Support

X

1305 PJM Capacity 
Resource / Obligation 
Mgt

X

1313 PJM Settlement 
Inc.

X

1314 Market Monitoring 
Unit Funding

X

1315 FERC Annual 
Recovery

X

1316 Organization of 
PJM States, Inc. 
Funding

X

1317 N. American 
Electric Reliability 
(NERC)

X

1318 Reliability First 
Corporation (RFC)

X

1319 Consumer 
Advocates of PJM 
States, Inc

X

1320 Transmission 
Owner Dispatch 
Service

X

1330 Reactive Supply 
from Generation

X

1340 Regulation and 
Frequency Response

X

1360 Synchronized 
Reserve

X

1361 Secondary 
Reserve

X

1362 Non-
Synchronized Reserve

X

1365 Day-ahead 
Scheduling Reserve

X



AMP Contract No. 2024-009435-SCHED

22

1370 Day-ahead 
Operating Reserve

X

1371 Day-ahead Op 
Reserves for Load 
Resp

X

1375 Balancing 
Operating Reserve

X

1376 Balancing Op 
Reserves for Load 
Resp

X

1380 Black Start 
Service

X

1500 Financial Trans. 
Rights Auction

X X X

1610 Locational 
Reliability

X

2100 Network 
Integrated 
Transmission Credit

X

2130 Firm PTP 
Transmission Service 
Credit

X

2140 Non-Firm PTP 
Transmission Svc. 
Credit

X

2211 Day-ahead 
Transmission 
Congestion

X X X

2215 Balancing 
Transmission 
Congestion

X

2220 Transmission 
Losses Credits

X

2260 Emergency 
Energy

X

2320 Transmission 
Owner Dispatch Svc 
Credit

X

2330 Reactive Supply 
from Generation Credit

X

2340 Regulation and 
Frequency Resp Credit

X

2360 Balancing Synch X



AMP Contract No. 2024-009435-SCHED

23

Reserve Credit
2361 Balancing 
Secondary Reserve 
Credit

X

2366 Day-Ahead 
Synch Reserve Credit

X

2367 Day-Ahead 
Secondary Reserve 
Credit

X

2368 Day-Ahead Non-
Synch Reserve Credit

X

2370 Day Ahead 
Operating Reserve 
Credit

X

2375 Balancing 
Operating Reserve 
Credit

X

2380 Black Start 
Service Credit

X

2390 Fuel Cost Policy 
Penalty Credit

X

2500 Financial 
Transmission Rights 
Auction

X X X

2510 Auction Revenue 
Rights

X

2600 RPM Auction X
2630 Capacity Transfer 
Rights

X

2640 Inc. Capacity 
Transfer Rights

X

2650 Auction Specific 
MW Transaction

X

2661 Capacity 
Resource Deficiency 
Credit

X

2667 Bonus 
Performance

X

Excess Energy 
Purchase Section 
C(2)(e )(ii)

X

Generation Deviation 
Section E

X

BTMG Capacity Peak X



AMP Contract No. 2024-009435-SCHED

24

Shaving Section G(3)
BTMG Transmission 
Peak Shaving Sect. 
E(2)

X

Calculated Inadvertent 
Charges per Exhibit B

X X

 Charges/Credits 
moved from Energy 
Pool to Ancillary 
Service when PCA is 
outside of bandwidth

X X



AMP Contract No. 2024-009435-SCHED

25

Exhibit C
Pool Participants

Member Pool Transmissio
n Zone

Pricing Point

Amherst NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Beach City NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Bowling Green NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Bowling Green 
(Water Plant)

NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)

Bowling Green 
(Waste Water 
Plant)

NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)

Bradner NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Brewster NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Cleveland NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Columbiana NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Custar NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Cuyahoga Falls NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Edgerton NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Ellwood City NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Elmore NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Galion NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Genoa NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Grafton NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Grove City NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Haskins NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Holiday City 
(Village Load)

NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)

Hubbard NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Hudson NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Huron NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Huron 
(Greenhouse 
Load)

NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)

Lodi NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Lucas NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Milan NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Monroeville NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Montpelier NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Napoleon NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
New Wilmington NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Newton Falls NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Niles NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Oak Harbor NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Oberlin NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Oberlin (RNG 
Plant)

NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)

Painesville NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Pemberville NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Pioneer NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)



AMP Contract No. 2024-009435-SCHED

26

Prospect NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Seville NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
South Vienna NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Toledo NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Wadsworth NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Wampum NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Wellington NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Woodville NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Zelienople NPP ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)
Monroeville 
(Data Center 
Load)

Monroevill
e GMD

ATSI AMP-ATSI LMP (PJM Node 115944309)

Dover PJM Pool AEP AMP-OHIO LMP (PJM Node 43653269)
Holiday City 
(Chase Brass 
Load)

PJM Pool AEP AMP-OHIO LMP (PJM Node 43653269)

Jackson PJM Pool AEP AMP-OHIO LMP (PJM Node 43653269)
Orrville PJM Pool AEP AMP-OHIO LMP (PJM Node 43653269)
New Knoxville PJM Pool AEP AMP-OHIO LMP (PJM Node 43653269)
St. Marys PJM Pool AEP AMP-OHIO LMP (PJM Node 43653269)
Woodsfield PJM Pool AEP AMP-OHIO LMP (PJM Node 43653269)

Arcadia OMEG AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)
Bloomdale OMEG AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)
Bryan OMEG AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)
Carey OMEG AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)
Clyde OMEG AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)
Cygnet OMEG AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)
Deshler OMEG AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)
Greenwich OMEG AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)
Ohio City OMEG AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)
Plymouth OMEG AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)
Republic OMEG AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)
Shiloh OMEG AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)
Sycamore OMEG AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)
Wharton OMEG AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)
Wapakoneta OMEG AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)
Wapakoneta 
(Greenhouse 
Load)

Green-
house

AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)

Wapakoneta 
(Paper Mill 
Load)

Paper Mill AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)

Wapakoneta 
(Box Plant Load)

Box Plant AEP AEPOHIO_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1269364670)

Arcanum WASG DAYTON DAY_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472937)
Celina WASG DAYTON DAY_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472937)
Eldorado WASG DAYTON DAY_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472937)
Jackson Center WASG DAYTON DAY_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472937)



AMP Contract No. 2024-009435-SCHED

27

Lakeview WASG DAYTON DAY_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472937)
Mendon WASG DAYTON DAY_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472937)
Minster WASG DAYTON DAY_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472937)
New Bremen WASG DAYTON DAY_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472937)
Piqua WASG DAYTON DAY_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472937)
Tipp City WASG DAYTON DAY_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472937)
Versailles WASG DAYTON DAY_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472937)
Waynesfield WASG DAYTON DAY_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472937)
Yellow Springs WASG DAYTON DAY_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472937)

Berlin CPPG PENELEC PENELEC_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472951)
East 
Conemaugh

CPPG PENELEC PENELEC_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472951)

Girard CPPG PENELEC PENELEC_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472951)
Hooversville CPPG PENELEC PENELEC_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472951)
Smethport CPPG PENELEC PENELEC_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472951)
Summerhill CPPG PENELEC PENELEC_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472951)

Blakely EPPG PPL PPL_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472953)
Catawissa EPPG PPL PPL_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472953)
Duncannon EPPG PPL PPL_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472953)
Hatfield EPPG PPL PPL_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472953)
Lansdale EPPG PPL PPL_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472953)
Lehighton EPPG PPL PPL_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472953)
Mifflinburg EPPG PPL PPL_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472953)
Quakertown EPPG PPL PPL_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472953)
Saint Clair EPPG PPL PPL_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472953)
Schuylkill Haven EPPG PPL PPL_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472953)
Watsontown EPPG PPL PPL_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472953)
Weatherly EPPG PPL PPL_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 116472953)
Goldsboro EPPG METED AMP-METED LMP (PJM Node 123905781)
Kutztown EPPG METED AMP-METED LMP (PJM Node 123905781)
Lewisberry EPPG METED AMP-METED LMP (PJM Node 123905781)
Royalton EPPG METED AMP-METED LMP (PJM Node 123905781)

Coldwater
MSCPA METC/

CONS
MSCPA

Hillsdale
MSCPA METC/ 

CONS
MSCPA

Marshall
MSCPA METC/ 

CONS
MSCPA

Clinton MSCPA ITC MSCPA

Hamilton Hamilton DUKE DEOK_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1069452904)
Lebanon Lebanon DUKE DEOK_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1069452904)
Georgetown George-

town
DUKE DEOK_RESID_AGG LMP (PJM Node 1069452904)

Williamstown Williams-
town

DUKE WILLIAMSTOWN LMP (PJM Node 128774205)

Cannelton, IN Cannelton SIGE Cannelton



AMP Contract No. 2024-009435-SCHED

28

Berlin, MD Berlin DPL BERLIN DPL LMP (PJM Node 615760)
Bedford, VA Bedford AEP BLUE RIDGE LMP (PJM Node 35024709)
Danville, VA Danville AEP BLUE RIDGE LMP (PJM Node 35024709)
Richlands, VA Richlands APS BLUE RIDGE LMP (PJM Node 35024709)

Front Royal
Front 
Royal

APS BLUE RIDGE LMP (PJM Node 35024709)

Columbus Columbus AEP Columbus
Ephrata Ephrata PPL EPHRATA LMP (PJM Node 51220)
Perkasie Perkasie PPL PERKASIE LMP (PJM Node 32711185)

New 
Martinsville, VA

West 
Virgnia

APS NEWMARTINSVILLE-AP LMP (PJM Node 27677108)

Philippi
West 

Virginia
APS PHILPPI-AP LMP (PJM Node 27677107)

DEMEC N/A
Glouster N/A
Marshallville N/A
Paducah N/A
Princeton N/A
Shelby N/A
St. Clairsville N/A
Westerville N/A
Wyandotte N/A


	1regular meeting AGENDA 10-16-24 DRAFT
	1regular meeting MINUTES 10-02-24 DRAFT
	2024-10-10 22-14
	07-2024 Res Rescind 38-2023 Community Services Activities Comm
	07-2024 Exh 38-2023 SIGNED
	2024-44 Ord NPP Power Pool Participant
	____________________________________
	David Hanson, Mayor
	Approved as to Legal Form.
	_____________________________________

	2024-44 Exh A Power Pool Schedule Update 10.31.2023

